




 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

agreed between the Company and any Lender(s), provided that the maximum extent of the 

Financial Indebtedness secured by the assets of the Company does not exceed Rupees 500 Crores 

(Five Hundred Crores) at any time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (including any Committee duly constituted by the 

Board of Directors or any authority as approved by the Board of Directors) be and is hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to sign and execute all such deed, documents 

and instruments as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto to give effect to this 

resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors/Company Secretary of the Company be 

and is hereby authorized to file necessary returns/forms with the Registrar of Companies and to 

do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary, incidental and ancillary in 

order to give effect to this Resolution. 

4.   To consider and approve the increase in borrowings of company under Section 180(1)(c) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

RESOLVED THAT in supersession of all the resolutions passed earlier in this regard and 

pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder (including any amendments, statutory 

modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof) and the provisions of the Memorandum of 

Association and Articles of Association of the Company, Circulars/ Notifications/ Directions 

issued by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time, approval of the Members of the Company 

be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (the 'Board' which term 

shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board) to borrow from time to time such sum 

or sums of money as it may deem requisite for the purpose of the business of the Company, inter 

alia, by way of loan/financial assistance from various bank(s), financial institution(s) and/or other 

lender(s), issue of debentures including market linked debentures whether secured or unsecured, 

bonds or other debt instruments, with or without security, whether in India or abroad, on such 

terms and conditions as the Board at its sole discretion may deem fit, notwithstanding that the 

money or monies to be borrowed, together with the monies already borrowed by the Company 

(apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of 

business) may exceed aggregate of the paid-up share capital of the Company, its free reserves 

and securities premium, provided however, the total amount so borrowed (apart from the 

temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business) shall 

not exceed at any point in time (excluding any interest on such borrowings) of a sum equivalent 

to Rupees 500 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only). 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board (including any Committee duly constituted by the 

Board of Directors or any authority as approved by the Board of Directors) be and is hereby 

authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things and to sign and execute all such deed, documents 

and instruments as may be necessary, expedient and incidental thereto to give effect to this 

resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors / Company Secretary of the Company 

be and is hereby authorized to file necessary returns/forms with the Registrar of Companies and 

to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered necessary, incidental and ancillary in 

order to give effect to this Resolution. 

5.  To consider and approve Inter Corporate Loan Facility under section 185 and 186 of the 

Companies Act 2013 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of 185, 186 and all other applicable provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and 

other applicable Rules  (including any statutory amendment or modification thereof), and subject 

to such approvals as may be required in this regard, consent of the members of the Company be 

and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to provide secured/unsecured 

loan facilities aggregating upto Rs. 500 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) in one or 

more tranches to the entities on such terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the 

Company and the borrower from time to time. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any prior loan given including loan represented by way of 

book debt or giving of guarantee(s), and/or providing of security (ies) in connection with any 

Loan taken/to be taken by any entity which is a Subsidiary or Associate or group entity of the 

Company or any other person in which any of the Director of the Company, shall hereby stand 

ratified 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors/ Company Secretary of the Company 

be and are hereby authorized to take such steps as may be necessary to give effect to this 

resolution including negotiation, finalization and acceptance of the terms and conditions of the 

aforesaid loan facilities preparing, entering into and execution of agreements and other 

documentation and generally to do all such acts and deeds as may be necessary for extending the 

said loan facility and for all matters connected therewith and/or incidental thereto. 

6. To consider and approve the remuneration payable to Mr. G Sridharan (DIN: 09460423), 

Whole time Director of the Company  

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, 

(“the Act”) (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being 

in force), the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial  Personnel) Rules, 2014, 

as amended, and based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

and approval of the Board of Directors, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the 

terms of remuneration payable to Mr. G Sridharan, Whole time Director (DIN: 09460423), of the 

Company for the financial year  2023-24 as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the 

Notice convening this meeting. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure 

of Mr. G Sridharan, the Company has no profits or does not earn any profits or its profits are 

inadequate as contemplated under the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 the 

Company will pay as the minimum remuneration by way of Salary as specified above and subject 

to the receipt of the requisite approvals, if any required. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Director/ Company Secretary of the Company, be 

and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed necessary, 

proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution including alteration and variation in 

the terms of remuneration so as to comply with the requirements of the Act as may be deemed to 

be in the best interest of the company.  

 

7.  To consider and ratify the remuneration paid to Mr. G Sridharan (DIN: 09460423), Whole 

time Director of the Company 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197 of the Companies Act, 

2013, read with The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, if any, the remuneration paid to Mr. G Sridharan 

Whole time Director (DIN: 09460423), for the Financial Year ended 31
st
 March 2023 as set out in 

the Explanatory Statement annexed to the Notice convening this meeting be and is hereby 

ratified. 

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure 

of Mr. G Sridharan, the Company has no profits or does not earn any profits or its profits are 

inadequate as contemplated under the provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 the 

Company will pay as the minimum remuneration by way of Salary as specified above and subject 

to the receipt of the requisite approvals, if any required. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Director/Company Secretary of the Company, be 

and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be deemed necessary, 

proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution including alteration and variation in 

the terms of remuneration so as to comply with the requirements of the Act as may be deemed to 

be in the best interest of the company. 

 

By Order of the Board 

 

 

Priyanka Singh  

Company Secretary 

Place: Howrah 

Date: 24
th
 July 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

NOTES: 

1. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 

13, 2020 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated 

May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated 

December 14, 2021, Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and Circular No. 10/2022 dated 

December 28, 2022 (MCA Circulars) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 

dated January 5, 2023 (SEBI Circular) and all other relevant circulars issued from time to 

time, companies are allowed to hold annual general meeting (AGM) through video 

conference (VC). In compliance with the circulars, the 38
th
 AGM of the company is being 

held through VC. Hence, the members are requested to attend and participate at the ensuing 

AGM through VC/OAVM facility being provided by the company through National 

Securities Depository Limited (“NSDL”). 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not 

available for this AGM. Hence, proxy form, attendance slip and route map are not attached to 

this notice. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives 

to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and participate thereat and cast their votes through e-

voting. 

3. Corporate / institutional shareholders who are intending to authorise their representative(s) to 

attend the e-AGM are requested to upload in the e-voting portal, the scanned certified true 

copy (PDF Format) of the board resolution / authority letter etc., together with attested 

specimen signature(s) of the duly authorised representative(s) or alternatively to e-mail, to the 

scrutinizer at cs.agarwalshruti@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

4. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 

scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 

in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 

available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 

Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional 

Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 

Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come 

first served basis. 

5. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for 

the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

6. Information as required under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) in respect of re-appointment of directors is furnished 

and forms part of the notice. 

7. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing 

regulations, the register of members and share transfer books of the company will remain 

closed from 21
st
 September 2023 to 27

th
 September 2023 (both days inclusive). 

8. All correspondence relating to change of address, e-mail ID, transfer / transmission of shares, 

issue of duplicate share certificates, bank mandates and all other matters relating to the 

shareholding in the company may be made to acaasm@rediffmail.com, the registrar and share 

transfer agent (RTA). The members holding shares in dematerialized form may send such 

communication to their respective depository participant/s (DPs). 

9. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 

44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs the Company is providing 

facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 

AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 

authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system 

as well as venue voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

10. As an eco-friendly measure intending to benefit the environment and society at large, we 

request you to be a part of the e-initiative and register your e-mail address to receive all 

communication and documents including annual reports from time to time in electronic form. 

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent through 

electronic mode to those members whose email address is registered with the Company / 

Depository Participant(s). The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of 

the Company at www.resltouchfinance. com The Notice can also be accessed from the 

websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India 

Limited atwww.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is 

also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) 

i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com 

11. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and 

Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”) relating to the Special Businesses to be transacted at the Annual 

General Meeting is annexed hereto. 

12. Members may please note that SEBI vide its circular dated 25 January, 2022 has mandated 

listed companies to issue securities in demat mode only while processing service requests 

viz., transfer, transmissions, issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from unclaimed 

suspense account, renewal/exchange of securities certificate, endorsement, sub-division/ 

splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities certificates/ folios and 

transposition. Further SEBI vide its circular dated 18 May, 2022 has simplified the procedure 

and standardized the format of documents for transmission of securities. Accordingly, 

members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form 

ISR-4 & ISR-5, as the case maybe. 

13. As per the SEBI circular dated 3 November, 2021, facility for registering nomination is 

available for members in respect of the shares held by them. Shareholders who have not yet 

registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13 

which can be obtained from depository participants or downloaded from 

https://nichetechpl.com/. Members holding shares in electronic form may approach their 

respective DPs for completing the nomination formalities. 

14. In terms of the requirements of Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations and the 

Secretarial Standards- 2 on “General Meetings” issued by the Institute of the Company 

Secretaries of India and approved & notified by the Central Government, brief resume and 

statement as required by paragraph no. 1.2.5 of SS2 – Secretarial Standards on General 

Meetings is enclosed as Annexure A. 

15. The Registers as required to be maintained under Section 170 and Section 189 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and other requisite documents mandated under applicable statutory 

regulations will be available for inspection by the members during the AGM. The documents 

referred to in the Resolutions can be inspected at the Registered Office of the Company 

during 10 am to 5 pm on all working days of the Company. 

16. Pursuant to SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 9 December, 2020 

on “e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies”, e-Voting process has been enabled to 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

all the individual demat account holders, by way of single login credential, through their 

demat accounts / websites of Depositories / DPs in order to increase the efficiency of the 

voting process. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and e-mail ID with 

their DPs to access e-Voting facility. 

17. The Board has appointed Mrs Shruti Agarwal (ACS 38797 /COP 14602), Practicing Company 

Secretaries, as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting and e-voting process during the 

AGM in a fair and transparent manner in terms of the requirements of the Act and the rules 

made there under, and he has communicated his eligibility and willingness to be appointed as 

Scrutinizer and given his consent for the same and will be available for the said purpose. The 

scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of the voting at the AGM, first count the 

votes cast at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes in the presence of atleast two witnesses 

not in the employment of the company and make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report to the 

chairman of the company or person authorised by him in writing who shall countersign the 

same. The voting results along with scrutinizers report shall be posted on the company’s 

website viz. www.realtouchfinance.com and will also be posted on the website of NSDL at 

www.evoting.nsdl.com after the result is declared by the chairman / authorised person and 

simultaneously communicated to BSE Limited and NSE Limited. 

 

By Order of the Board 

 

 

Priyanka Singh  

Company Secretary 

Place: Howrah 

Date: 24
th
 July 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING 

GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

The remote e-voting period begins on 24
th
 September 2023 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 26

th
 September 

2023 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The 

Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date 

(cut-off date) i.e 20
th
 September 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of 

shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as 

on the cut-off date, being 20
th
 September 2023. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

Step1: Access to NSDL e-voting system 

Part A: Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode-Steps to Login for e-voting and for 

joining the Virtual Annual General Meeting (the Meeting). 

Type of Shareholders Login Method 

 
 

Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL 

1.Through NSDL IDeAS facility 
If you are already registered, follow the below steps : 
1. Visit the e-services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

the following URL : 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. 

2. Click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is 

available under “IDeAS” section. 

3. Enter your User ID and Password in the new screen that opens. 

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-voting 

services. 

4. Click on “Access to e-voting” appearing on the left hand side under 

e-voting services and you will be able to see e-voting page. 

5. Click on options available against Company name or e-voting 

service provider-NSDL and you will be re-directed to NSDL e-voting 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or 

joining virtual Meeting and e-voting during the Meeting. 

If you are not registered, follow the below steps : 
1. Option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com 

2.Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Please follow steps given in points 1-5. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 Through e-voting website of NSDL 
1. Open web browser by typing the following URL : 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

2. Click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. Enter your User ID (i.e., your sixteen digit demat account number 

held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown 

on the screen. 

4. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

website wherein you can see e-voting page. Click on options available 

against Company name or e-voting service provider-NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 

during the remote e-voting period or joining virtual Meeting and e-

voting during the Meeting. 

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 

for seamless voting experience. 

                                                   
Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Through CDSL Easi/Easiest 
1. Existing users who have opted for Easi/Easiest, can login through 

their User ID and Password. Option will be made available to reach e-

voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to 

login to Easi/Easiest is https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login 

or www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest, the user will be also able to 

see the e-voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-voting service 

provider i.e., NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

2. Through e-voting website of CDSL 
1. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN on the home page of 

www.cdslindia.com. The system will authenticate the User by sending 

OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, User will be provided links 

for the respective ESP i.e., NSDL where the e-voting is in progress. 

Individual shareholders 

(holding securities in demat 

mode) login through their 

Depository Participants 

1. You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your DP registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-voting 

facility. 

2. Once logged-in, you will be able to see e-voting option. Click on e-

voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-voting feature. 

3. Click on options available against Company name or e-voting 

service provider-NSDL and you will be redirected to e-voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or 

joining virtual Meeting and e-voting during the Meeting. 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Important Note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/Password are advised to use Forgot 

User ID and Forgot Password option available at respective websites. 

 

Helpdesk numbers for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any 
technical issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk Details 

Individual shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at Toll Free 

No.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 224 430 

Individual shareholders 

holding securities in 

demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 

helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or 

contact at 022-2305 8738 or 022-2305 8542/43 

 

 

B. Shareholders other than Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode-Steps to Login for e-voting and for joining the 

virtual Meeting 

1. Visit the e-voting website of NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

2. Click on “Login” under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. Enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the new 

screen. 

 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL e-services i.e., IDeAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDeAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL e-services after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e., Cast your vote 

electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are as given below: 

 

Manner of Holding Shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDl or CSDL) or Physical 

Your User ID 

For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 

ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 

Client ID is 12****** then your User ID 

is IN300***12****** 

For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your User ID is 

12************** 

For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the Company. 

For example, if Folio Number is 001*** and 

EVEN is 101456 then your User ID is 

101456001*** 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual Shareholders are given below: 

a. If you are already registered for e-voting, then you can use your existing password to 

login and cast your vote. 

b. If you are using NSDL e-voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 

password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 

change your password. 

c. Process to retrieve your ‘initial password’: 

i. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, 

your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the 

email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 

the attachment i.e., .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 

Client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of Client ID for CDSL account or 

Folio Number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your 

‘User ID’ and your ‘Initial Password’. 

ii. If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned in Part E. 

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “initial password” or have forgotten your 

password: 

d. If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL, click on 

“Forgot User Details/Password?”option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com 

e. If you are holding shares in physical mode, click on “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com 

f. If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, 

your PAN, your name and your registered address. 

 

Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 

e-voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 

8. Thereafter Home page of e-voting will open. 

Part B: Cast your vote electronically and join the Meeting on NSDL e-voting system 
 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

 

2. Select “EVEN” for Abbott India Limited to cast your vote during the remote e-voting period and 

cast your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on 

“VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

 

3. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 

prompted. 

 

4. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

 

5. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

Part C: General Instructions: 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

1. Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to upload their 

Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney/Authority Letter by clicking on “Upload Board 

Resolution/Authority Letter” displayed under “e-voting” tab or send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) 

of the relevant Board Resolution/Authority Letter, etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 

cs.agarwalshruti@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 

to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 

unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. 

In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 

Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 

e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or 

call on Toll Free No. : 1800 1020 990/1800 224 430 or write to Assistant Manager at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

 

4. Members may send a request evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring User ID and Password for e-voting 

by providing demat account number/folio number, client master or copy of consolidated account 

statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy),AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy). If you are an 

individual Shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login 

method explained above. 

 

Part D: Instructions for voting by the Members at Meeting attended through VC/OAVM: 

 
1. The procedure for e-voting on the day of the Meeting is same as the instructions mentioned above 

for remote e-voting. 

 

2. Only those Members, who will be present in the Meeting through VC/OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing 

so, shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system in the Meeting. 

 

3. Members who have voted through remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the Meeting. However, 

they will not be eligible to vote at the Meeting. 

 

4. The Members may connect with Assistant Manager-NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in for any 

grievances/ concerns relating to e-voting during the Meeting. 

 

Part E: Instructions for registration of Email Address: 
 
The Members whose email addresses are not registered with the Company are requested to do so by 

following the process given below: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of the Shareholder, 

scanned copies of the Share Certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy), AADHAR 

(self-attested scanned copy) by email to acaasm@rediffmail.com 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, the Shareholders are requested to get in touch with their 

respective Depository Participants for updating their email address. If you are an individual 

Shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 

explained at Step 1 (A) i.e., Login method for e-voting and joining virtual Meeting for individual 

Shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, Shareholders/Members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring User 

ID and Password for e-voting by providing above-mentioned documents. 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Statement pursuant to section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out all 

material facts relating to the special businesses to be transacted at the AGM is detailed 

hereunder: 

 

Item No. 3 & 4:  

 

In terms of the provisions under of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") , 

the Board of Directors of a Company shall not, except with the consent of Company by Special 

Resolution borrow money together with the money already borrowed, if any (apart from 

temporary loans obtained from the Company's bankers in the ordinary course of business), 

exceeding the aggregate of the paid up capital and its free reserves. 

 

The members of the Company at the 37th Annual General Meeting held on 28.09.2022 had 

approved by way of a Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, 

borrowings over and above the aggregate of paid up share capital and free reserves of the 

Company provided that the total amount of such borrowings together with the amounts already 

borrowed and outstanding at any point of time shall not be in excess of Rs. 200 Crores (Rupees 

Two Hundred Crores only). Considering the increased fund requirements of the company and to 

enable the Board to raise such funds, it is necessary to increase the existing borrowing limit 

approved by the members. Accordingly it is proposed to seek approval of the members in terms 

of the provisions under Section 180(1) (c) of the Act to increase the borrowing limit to Rs.500 

Crores. 

 

For the purpose of funding its lending business operations, the Company raises resources inter-

alia by borrowing monies from time to time from various bodies corporate, banks, financial 

institutions, etc. and by way of issue of debentures including market linked debentures whether 

secured or unsecured, bonds or any other debt instruments and these borrowings are inter-alia 

secured by hypothecation of receivables/book debts, mortgage of immovable properties, 

promissory notes and pledge on the movable assets of the Company as recommended by the 

Board. During this process it would be necessary for the company to create charges in favor of 

lenders which sometimes involves creating of charge on the substantial portion of the assets of 

the company requiring approval under Section 180(1)(a) of the Act. 

 

It is therefore, necessary to seek approval of  the members by way of  a Special Resolution under 

Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, as set out at Item No. 3 and Item 

No. 4 of the Notice, to enable the Board of Directors to borrow money upto Rs. 500 Crores 

(Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) from the existing limits of Rs.200 Crores (Rupees Two 

Hundred Crores only) and also to facilitate creation of charges on the assets of the company 

wherever required to comply with any loan covenant to be entered with the lenders.. The Board 

recommends the Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 3 and Item No. 4 of the Notice, for 

approval by the members of the Company. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives or any of 

other officials of the Company as contemplated in the provisions of Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 is, in any way, financially or otherwise, concerned or interested in the 

resolution. 

 

Item No. 5: To consider and approve Inter Corporate Loan Facility under section 185 and 

186 of the Companies Act 2013 

 

The Company is expected to render support for the business requirements of other companies in 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

the group (i.e. entities in which directors of the Company are interested as per the provisions of 

section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013), from time to time. Pursuant to the provisions of the 

section, the Company with the approval of members by way of special resolution, may advance 

any loan including any loan represented by a book debt, or give any guarantee or provide any 

security in connection with any loan taken by any person in whom any of the director of the 

company is interested in respect of loans taken by such entities, for their principal business 

activities. Accordingly, in order to meet the funding requirements and ensure necessary 

compliances of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, it is proposed to grant loans or 

provide guarantee/security to the  following  entity upto an aggregate amount of Rs. 500 Crores.  

 

Any prior loan given including loan represented by way of book debt or giving of guarantee(s), 

and/or providing of security (ies) in connection with any Loan taken/to be taken by any entity 

which is a Subsidiary or Associate or group entity of the Company or any other person in which 

any of the Director of the Company, shall also hereby stand ratified by the Shareholders in this 

meeting. 

In terms of the provisions under Section 185 of the Act, approval of members by way of a Special 

Resolution is necessary to advance loan including any loan represented by a book debt, or give 

any guarantee or provide any security in connection with any loan taken by any person in whom 

any of the director of the company is interested to any entity of the group, in which Directors of 

the company are interested directly or indirectly.  Accordingly, the approval of the members is 

sought in terms of Section 185 of the Act for the above proposal.   

  

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term 

strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of 

the same by making investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or 

providing security to other persons or other body corporate or as and when required. In 

accordance with the provisions Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’), it would be 

necessary to obtain the approval of the members for making loans to any person or other bodies 

corporate; giving guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other bodies 

corporate or person; and acquiring by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities 

of any other body corporate, in excess of the limits of:  

 

1. 60% of the paid-up share capital and free reserves and securities premium account; or  

2. 100% of the free reserves and securities premium account; whichever is higher.  

 

Considering the long-term business plans of the Company, which requires the Company to make 

sizeable loans / investments and issue guarantees / securities to persons or bodies corporate, from 

time to time, prior approval of members is being sought for enhancing the limit up to an 

aggregate sum of Rs. 500 Crores. No loan shall be given under this section at a rate of interest 

lower than the prevailing market rate of the same, from time to time. Since the proposed 

loans/investments from the Company are expected to exceed limits available under Section 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the members by way of Special resolution is required. 

 

The Board recommends passing the Special Resolution set out in Item No. 5 for the approval of 

members. None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their 

relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution in which 

investment may be made or loan/ guarantees may be given pursuant to this special resolution. 

 

Item No. 6: To consider and approve the remuneration payable to Mr. G Sridharan (DIN: 

09460423), Whole time Director of the Company 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

As part of annual revision in remuneration for FY 2023-24, the Nomination & Remuneration 

Committee at its meeting held on 24
th
 July, 2023, has recommended the revised remuneration 

payable to Mr. Gopal Sridharan (holding DIN: 09460423), Whole-time Director from April 1, 

2023.  Subsequently the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 24
th
 July, 2023 approved the 

remuneration payable to Mr. G Sridharan (holding DIN: 09460423), Whole-time Director with 

effect from April 01, 2023, subject to approval of shareholders at the ensuing AGM by way of 

ordinary  resolution, the details of remuneration is provided below: 

 

(A) Salary: Rs. 3,78,370/- (Rupees Three Lakhs Seventy Eight Thousand and Three Hundred  

Seventy Only) per month. 

(B)  Perquisites: 

1.  Medical Insurance for self and family as per the scheme of the Company. 

2. Earned/Privilege Leave with right to accumulate/encash as per the rules of the Company 

3.  Personal accident insurance is as per the rules of the Company 

4. Provident Fund: Company’s contribution to Provident Fund shall be as per the scheme of the 

Company. 

5. Gratuity: As per the rules of the Company, not exceeding half a month’s salary for each 

completed years of service. 

           6. Performance linked bonus as per the policies of the Company 

 

The remuneration payable to Mr. G Sridharan (holding DIN: 09460423), is within the conditions 

and limits as prescribed in Part I and Section 1 of Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. Furthermore, brief details of Mr. G 

Sridharan (holding DIN: 09460423), Whole-time Director, as required by paragraph no. 1.2.5 of 

SS2 – Secretarial Standards on General Meetings is provided in Annexure A. 

 

Mr. G Sridharan (holding DIN: 09460423), Whole-time Director is directly interested in the said 

resolution and his relatives are interested to the extent of their shareholding in the Company. 

None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are concerned or 

interested financially or otherwise in this resolution. 

 

Accordingly, your directors recommend the Ordinary Resolution in item no. 6 for your approval. 

 

Item No. 7: Ratification of Remuneration paid to Mr. G Sridharan, Whole-time Director 

(DIN: 09460423)  

 

Mr. G Sridharan was appointed as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of three 

years commencing from 6
th

 January 2022. The appointment of Mr. G Sridharan as Whole-time 

Director and the remuneration payable to him was also approved by the Shareholders. 

Accordingly, the remuneration in the form of Salary of Rs. 33,00,000 (Rupees Thirty Three 

Lakhs Only) per annum with the monthly payouts on a proportionate basis was being made. 

 

 Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of Mr. G Sridharan, the Company 

has no profits or does not earn any profits or its profits are inadequate as contemplated under the 

provisions of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 the Company will pay as the minimum 

remuneration by way of Salary as specified above and subject to the receipt of the requisite 

approvals, if any required. 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 197, 198, the resolution is being placed before the 

shareholders for ratification. Additionally, in the event of inadequacy of profits in any financial 

year, the remuneration by way of salary, allowances, commission, perquisites and retirement 

benefits to Mr. G Sridharan is paid in accordance with section II of part II of Schedule V of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014. Mr. G Sridharan was not entitled to any sitting fees for attending 

meetings of the Board or of any committee thereof.  

 

In compliance with the provisions under section 196, 197 of the Act, the ratification of the 

remuneration of Mr. G Sridharan, Whole-time Director proposed under Item No. 7 of the Notice 

is placed before the Members. 

 

The Board recommends the ordianry resolution in Item No.7 for the ratification by the Members. 

Mr. Gopal Sridharan is directly interested in this resolution as the subject matter of the Resolution 

pertains to his remuneration. None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their 

relatives are concerned or interested financially or otherwise, in this resolution. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Annexure – A 

 
Statement as required by paragraph no. 1.2.5 of SS2 – Secretarial Standards on General Meetings: 
 

Name of Director Gopal Sridharan 

DIN 09460423 

Date of Birth / (Age) 06/03/1974 

Qualifications Science Graduate and PGDM from IIM Kolkata 

Brief resume & Experience  Mr. G. Sridharan is about 49 years is a Science Graduate from Madras 

University and PGDM (Applied Finance) from IIM, Calcutta. Mr. 

Sridharan has over 20 years of rich experience in the finance industry 

with the leading institutions like ICICI bank, Reliance capital and 

InCred Financial Service Limited. He has sound knowledge about 

Retail and SME loan products. In his last assignment as Director Sales 

(SME), he played a significant role in setting up the complete Secured 

business loan vertical for InCred. Later, he was elevated to handle 

unsecured business loans and Loan against property.  He has managed 

an AUM 880 Cr., and it was one of the most profitable businesses for 

InCred. He won many accolades in his professional carrier, including 

the Best People Manager award from Reliance capital. 

 

Expertise in specific Functional 
areas 

Finance,  Retail Asset, Sales, SME Retail & Strategic, inventory 

funding, LAP   

Terms and conditions of 
appointment 

Mr. G. Sridharan appointed as Whole time Director at the Board 

Meeting held on 6
th

 January, 2022 for a period of three years till 5
th

 

January, 2025  

Remuneration sought to be paid Rs. 45,60,000 

Remuneration last drawn (for 
financial year 2022-23) 

Rs. 33,00,000 

Date of first appointment on the 
Board 

6
th

 January 2022 

Shareholding in the Company as of 
March 31, 2023 

He does not hold any shares in the Company  

Relationship with other Directors, 
Manager and KMP of the Company 

Not Applicable 

Number of Board Meetings attended 
during FY 2022-23 

2 

Other Directorships, Membership/ 
Chairmanship of Committees of 
other Boards 

Not Applicable  

In the case of independent directors, 
the skills and capabilities required 
for the role and the manner in which 
the proposed person meets such 
requirements 

Not Applicable 

 



 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 

To The Members, 

 

1. BACKGROUND 
Real Touch Finance Limited (“Company” or “RTFL”) is a subsidiary of Ultraplus Housing Private Limited and is a Non-

Banking Financial Company (“NBFC”), holding a Certificate of Registration dated September 5, 1999, from the Reserve 

Bank of India (“RBI”). 

 

The Company is having its registered office in Kolkata and has various branch offices in the state of Tamil Nadu, viz., 

Chennai, Kancheepuram, Thiruvallur, Villupuram, Arani & Vandavasi.  

 
2. FINANCIAL RESULTS 

 

2.1   Standalone Results 
 

The performance of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31
st
 March 2023, on a Standalone basis is, summarized 

below: 

 

S. No. Particulars 2022-2023 (Rs.‘00’) 2021-2022 (`Rs.'00') 

1. Gross Income 10,28,081.01 2,41,201.51 

2. Profit Before Interest and Depreciation and  

Provisions and Contingencies 
8,58,537.78 1,94,975.64 

3. Finance Cost 4,40,576.30 Nil 

4. Depreciation and Amortization 6,341.46 136.49 

5 Provisions and Contingencies 

 
38,563.71 160.00 

6 Profit Before Tax 
3,73,056.31 

1,94,679.15 

 

7 Tax Expense 1,11,096.15 49,500.00 

8 Profit After tax 2,61,960.16 1,45,179.15 

9 Other Comprehensive Income  
Items that will not  be reclassified subsequently to 

profit or loss 

11583.73 6,182.90 

10. Transfer to Statutory Reserve as per RBI 

Guidelines 
27,00,000.00 24,00,000.00 

11. Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares NIL NIL 

12. Balance Brought forward from Balance Sheet 8,70,375.10 7,50,013.50 

13. Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 10,89,209.99 8,70,375.10 

 

2.1.1 Company’s Performance 
 
Gross Income increased by 293% and stood at Rs. 9,27,62,272 (FY 2021-22: Rs. 2,36,06,651). The Company’s Profit Before 

Tax was Rs. 3,73,05,631 (FY 2021-22: Rs. 1,94,67,915) and the Profit After Tax increased by about 44.6% to Rs. 

2,61,96,016 (FY 2021-22: Rs. 1,45,17,915). 

 
3. SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES 
 

The Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2023 was Rs. 12,69,26,900 consisting of 

1,26,92,690 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Company issued unlisted secured non-

convertible debentures of Rs. 10,000/- each on a private placement basis amounting to Rs. 2.43 crores. 

 

4. DIVIDEND 
 

In order to conserve resources, the Board does not recommend payment of any Dividend on the Equity Shares for FY 2022-

23. 



 

 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
 

As required under Section 45IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, 20% of the profits are required to be transferred to a 

Special Reserve Account. An amount of Rs. 54,70,900 (FY 2022-23: Rs. 31,00,000), has been transferred to the said 

Reserve. 

 

6. SUBSIDIARIES 
 

The Company is a Subsidiary of M/s. Ultraplus Housing Estate Private Limited (“Ultraplus”), who holds 54.12% in the 

Company. However the Company does not have any subsidiaries  

 

7. INFORMATION ON MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 
 

There are no material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred during 

the financial year and from the end of the financial year till the date of this Report. 

 

8. DIRECTORS AND KMP 
 

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Director under Section 149 (7) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 confirming that he meets the criteria of Independence laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) Regulation 2015. 

 

Mr. Anant Bhagat has given his resignation in writing from the post of Managing director due to personal commitments and 

the same was approved by the members at the Extra-ordinary General meeting held on 12/05/2022.  

 

Mr. Sundaresan Sampathkumar was appointed as Additional Director with effect from 14th November 2022 and subsequently 

his appointment was regularized at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 9
th
 February 2023. 

  

Mrs. Swetha Gorawat, Non Independent Woman Director retiring by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 

she has offered herself for re-appointment. 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are Mr. 

Sridharan, Whole Time Director, Mr. Arindam Laha, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Priyanka Singh, Company Secretary.  

 
9. DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
All the independent directors (IDs) have submitted their declaration of independence, as required pursuant to section 149(7) 

of the Act, confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as provided in section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of 

the board, the IDs fulfill the conditions specified in the Act and the rules made there under for appointment as IDs including 

integrity, expertise and experience and confirm that they are independent of the management. All the IDs of the company 

have registered their names with the data bank of IDs and are in the process of completion of online proficiency self-

assessment test as per the timeline notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). 

 

10. EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS 
 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its 

own performance and of the individual Directors as well as an evaluation of the working of all the Committees of the Board. 

The Board of Directors was assisted by the NRC. The performance evaluation was carried out by seeking inputs from all the 

Directors / Members of the Committees, as the case may be. 

 

The Board of the Company followed the criteria as specified in the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) for evaluating the performance of the Board as a whole, Committees of the 

Board, Individual Directors and the Chairman. The criteria for evaluation of the Board as a whole, inter alia, covered 

parameters such as Structure of the Board, Meetings of the Board, Functions of the Board and Board & Management. The 

criteria for evaluation of Individual Directors covered parameters such as knowledge and competency, fulfillment of 

functions, ability to function as a team, etc. The criteria for evaluation of the Board Committees covered areas related to 

mandate and composition, effectiveness of the Committee, structure of the Committee and meetings, etc.  



 

 

The feedback of the Independent Directors on their review of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board 

as a whole, the performance of the Chairman of the Company and the assessment of the quality, quantity and timeliness of 

flow of information between the Company, the Management and the Board which was taken into consideration by the Board 

in carrying out the performance evaluation. 

 

11. POLICY ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) develops the competency requirements of the Board based on the 

industry and the strategy of the Company, conducts a gap analysis and recommends the reconstitution of the Board, as and 

when required. It also recommends to the Board, the appointment of Directors having good personal and professional 

reputation and conducts reference checks and due diligence of all Directors before recommending them to the Board. Besides 

the above, the NRC ensures that the new Directors are familiarized with the operations of the Company and endeavours to 

provide relevant training to the Directors. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors has 

adopted a Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes and a Remuneration Policy. 

 

The Policy on Board Diversity and Director Attributes has been framed to encourage diversity of thought, experience, 

knowledge, perspective, age and gender in the Board and to have in place, a transparent Board nomination process.  

 

The Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMPs and all other employees is aligned to the philosophy on the commitment of 

fostering a culture of leadership with trust.  

 

The Remuneration Policy aims to ensure that the level and composition of the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel and all other employees is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to successfully run the 

Company. 

 

 

Salient features of the Remuneration Policy, inter alia, include: 

 

•   Remuneration in the form of Sitting Fees and Commission to be paid to Independent Directors and Non-

Independent Non-Executive Directors, in accordance with the provisions of the Act and as recommended by the 

NRC; 

 

•     Remuneration to Managing Director / Executive Directors / Key Managerial Personnel and all other employees is 

reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate them to run the Company successfully and retain talented 

and qualified individuals suitable for their roles, in accordance with the defined terms of remuneration mix or 

composition; and 

 

•     No remuneration would be payable to Directors for services rendered in any other capacity unless the services are of 

a professional nature and the NRC is of the opinion that the Director possesses requisite qualification for the 

practice of the profession and approval of the Central Government has been received, if required, for paying the 

same. 

 

12. DIRECTOR RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT  
 

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, 

work performed by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of internal financial controls over 

financial reporting by the Statutory Auditors and the reviews performed by the Management and the relevant Board 

Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were 

adequate and effective during FY 2022-23. 

 

Accordingly, pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 

confirm that: 

 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as per the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, notified 



 

under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act"), other relevant provisions of the Act, guidelines issued by 

Regulators as applicable to an NBFC and other accounting principles generally accepted in India have been followed and 

that there are no material departures there from. 

 

b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year 

and of the profit and cash flows of the Company for the year; 

 

c) they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 

irregularities; 

 

d) they had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 

e) they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls 

were adequate and operating effectively; and 

 

f) they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 

were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act. 

 

13. REPORTING OF FRAUDS 
 
There were nil frauds reported by the Auditors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your 

Company hereby state and confirm that: 

 

14. REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS/KMP 
 

S. No. Names Designation Remuneration in 2022-
2023 (Amount in `) 

Remuneration in 
2021-22(Amount in `) 

1 Mr. G Sridharan  Whole Time  Director 33,00,000 7,00,000 

2. Mr. Anant Bhagat 

(Resigned  as Managing 

Director on 06.01.2022)                 

Managing Director  - 90,000 

3. Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra  Director 6,000 5,000 

4. Mr. Arindam Laha CFO (KMP) 1,04,000 96,000 

5. Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia Director 6,000 6,000 

6. Mr. Shrish Tapuriah Director - 5,000 

7. Mr. Priyanka Singh CS (KMP) 2,40,000 2,40,000 

8. Ms Shweta Ghorawat  Director 6,000 6,000 

9. Somnath Sarkar Director 6,000 3,000 

10.  Mr. Sundaresan 

Sampathkumar (appointed 

on 14.11.2022) 

Director - - 

 

15. DEPOSITS 
 

The Company did not hold any deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted any deposits during the year under 

review. 

 

16. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

In terms of Regulations 34 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure requirements) 

Regulation 2015, the management Discussion and Analysis report is set out in this report. 

 

 



 

17. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 

 
A report on corporate governance as per the Listing Regulations is attached and forms part of this report. The report also 

contains the details as required to be provided on the composition and category of directors, number of meetings of the 

board, composition of the various committees, annual board evaluation, remuneration policy, criteria for board nomination 

and senior management appointment, whistle blower policy / vigil mechanism, disclosure of relationships between directors 

inter-se, state of company’s affairs, etc. The executive director have submitted a compliance certificate to the board regarding 

the financial statements and other matters as required under regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations. 

 

18. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The Board periodically reviews the risks which are associated with business objectives, growth, talent, aspects etc., and 

actions are being taken to mitigate those risks then and there. 

 
19. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES 
 

The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2022-2023/2023-2024 to BSE (Scrip Code 

538611) where the Company’s shares are listed. 

 
20. DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES 
 

1,21,17,740 shares of the Company’s paid up Equity share Capital is in dematerialized form as on 31/03/2023 and the 

balance are in physical form. The Company’s registrar is M/s Niche Technologies Private Limited having their registered 

office at 3A, Auckland Road, 7
th
 Floor, Kolkata – 700017. 

 

21. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 
 

The Board of Directors duly met five times during the financial year under review. The gap between any two meetings did 

not exceed 120 days as prescribed under Companies Act, 2013. Dates of Board Meeting during the financial year are as 

follows: 

 

S.NO. DATE OF MEETING OF BOARD 

1 28
th
 May 2022 

2 12th August 2022 

3 14
th
 November 2022 

4 30
th
 January 2023 

5 9
th
 February 2023 

 

22. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
 

During the period under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any regulator or court or tribunal 

impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 
23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY 
 

The detail in respect of Internal Financial Control and their adequacy are included in the Management and Discussion 

Analysis report which forms part of the financial Statements.  

 

24. COMMITTEES 
 

The details of composition of the Board and its Committees, terms of reference of the Committees and the details of 

meetings held during the financial year are furnished in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

25. AUDITORS: 
 
Statutory Auditors: 
 
M/s P.D. Randar and Co. Chartered Accountants, Kolkata were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a 

period of 5 years to hold office till the conclusion of 42nd Annual General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2026-27. 

 

The Board was authorized to fix such remuneration as may be recommended by Audit Committee in consultation with the 

Auditors. They are liable to be rotated after three years with a cooling off period of six years before next appointment. The 

Statutory Auditors have confirmed that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.  

 

The Report of the Statutory Auditors with an unmodified opinion to the members is annexed and forms part of the financial 

statements and the same does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. There were no frauds 

detected or reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial 

year ended March 31, 2023. 

 
Secretarial Auditor: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Baid & Bengani & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries 

in Practice, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2022-23.  

 

The Company has received his written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 

Act and rules framed thereunder. The Secretarial Auditor has confirmed that he is not disqualified to be appointed as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report, in the prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as 

Annexure ‘II’. 

 

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. Baid & Bengani & Associates in 

their Secretarial Audit Report dated  22/05/2023 on the Secretarial and other related records of the Company, for FY 2022-

23. 

 

Internal Auditor 

 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the  Act, the Board of Directors had appointed M/s. J.P. Lakhotia and Associates, 

Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of the Company to undertake the Internal Audit of the Company for FY 

2022-23.  

 
The Company has received his written consent that the appointment is in accordance with the applicable provisions of the 

Act and rules framed thereunder. 

 
There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by M/s. J.P. Lakhotia and Associates in 

their Internal Audit Report on the Internal and other related records of the Company, for FY 2022-23. 

 

Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance:- 
 

As required by SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 the auditors’ certificate on 

corporate governance is enclosed as Annexure to the Board Report.  

 

26. EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 

As per Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management and 

Administration) Rules, 2014, the annual return of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 is available at 

the web address: 

https://www.realtouchfinance.com/investor-info.html 

 

 

 

 



 

27. COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT  
 

Maintenance of cost records and requirements of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of section 148(1) of the Act is 

not applicable for the business activities carried out by your Company. 

 

28. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS FOLLOWED BY THE COMPANY 

 
The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, as notified under the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Act. Further, the Company follows the Master 

Directions issued by RBI for NBFCs. 

 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The Accounting 

Policies adopted in the preparation of the Financial 

 
29. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND 

OUTGO 
 

Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company as it is not a manufacturing Company. However, your Company has been 

increasingly using information technology in its operation and promotes conservation of resources. 

 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2023, there were no foreign currency expenditure and no foreign currency 

earnings. 

 
30. DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE ACT 

READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 

A Statement giving the details required under Section 197(12) of the Act, read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the year ended March 31, 2023, is annexed as 

Annexure ‘I’.)  

 

The details required under Rule 5(2) and Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, for the year ended March 31, 2023, are provided in a separate Annexure forming part of this Report. 

In terms of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report and the Accounts, excluding the aforesaid Annexure, are 

being sent only through electronic mode to all the Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company. Any 

shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary, at the Registered Office of the 

Company. None of the employees listed in the said Annexure is related to any Director of the Company. 

 

31. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 

In terms of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company does not fulfill the requirement of Net 

Worth, Turnover and Net Profit that invoke the provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility.  

 

32. VIGIL MECHANISM 
 

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for its Directors and employees to report their concerns or grievances. The 

said mechanism, inter alia, encompasses the Whistle Blower Policy, the Fraud Risk Management Process, the mechanism for  

reporting of ethical concerns under the TCOC and the ABAC Policy and it provides for adequate safeguards against 

victimization of persons who use it. 

 

Company’s ABAC Policy and to the Chairman of the Company’s Audit Committee / the Chief Ethics Counselor under the 

Company’s Whistle Blower Policy. Information regarding the mechanism and the channels for reporting concerns are 

communicated to the relevant stakeholders. 

 

 

 

 



 

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

The Company has adopted a Policy and a Framework on Related Party Transactions (“RPTs”) for the purpose of 

identification, monitoring and approving such transactions in line with the requirements of the Act and the SEBI Listing 

Regulations. During the year under review, the RPT Policy had been amended to, inter alia; include the amendments of the 

SEBI Listing Regulations.  

 

All the RPTs that were entered into during FY 2022-23, were in ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. 

There were no material transactions requiring disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form 

AOC–2 does not form a part of this Annual Report. 

 

The details of RPTs as required to be disclosed by Indian Accounting Standard – 24 on “Related Party Disclosures” specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Rules Standards) Rules, 2015, are given in the 

Notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

34. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

The board has laid down a “Code of Conduct” for all the Board Members and the senior management of the Company and 

the same has been posted on the website of the Company.  

 

All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Company’s code of conduct for 

the financial year 2022-23. A declaration to this effect is included in Corporate Governance report forming part of this 

Annual Report. 

 

35. CODE FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 
 

The Company has adopted a Company’s Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 

Sensitive Information (UPSI) to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders in securities of the Company. The board has 

further approved policy governing the procedure of inquiry in case of actual or suspected leak of unpublished price sensitive 

information. The code has also been hosted on the website of the Company. 

 
36. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 
The Company is in compliance with SS – 1 i.e. Secretarial Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors and SS – 2 i.e. 

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

37. DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT 
 

As per Regulations 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Business responsibility Report is not applicable for the company.   

 

38. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE (PREVENTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 

The Company is committed to providing and promoting a safe and healthy work environment for all its employees. A 

‘Prevention of Sexual Harassment’ Policy, which is in line with the statutory requirements, along with a structured reporting 

and redressal mechanism, including the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee in accordance with the provisions of 

the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“the POSH Act”), is in 

place. 

 

39. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
 

The Company is to expand its business operations and for that purpose, it is proposed to raise funding for its lending business 

operations. The Company raises resources inter‐alia by borrowing monies from time to time from various bodies corporate, 

banks, financial institutions, etc. and by way of issue of debentures including market linked debentures whether secured or 

unsecured, bonds or any other debt instruments and these borrowings are inter‐alia secured by hypothecation of 

receivables/book debts, mortgage of immovable properties, promissory notes and pledge on the movable assets of the 

Company as recommended by the Board. 

 



 

It is therefore necessary under Section 180(1)(a) and 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, to enable the Board of Directors 

to borrow money up to Rs. 500 Crores (Rupees Five Hundred Crores only) from the existing limits of Rs. 200 Crores 

(Rupees Two Hundred Crores only) and inter alia, authorize the Board to secure its borrowing by hypothecation of 

receivables/book debts, mortgage of immovable properties, promissory notes and pledge on the movable assets of the 

Company as recommended by the Board. 

 

The Board recommends the Special Resolution as per the accompanying Annual General Meeting Notice, for approval by 

the Shareholders of the Company. 

 

40. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

Directors deeply acknowledge the trust and confidence you have placed in the company. Director would also like to thank all 

its Banker, Customer, Vendors and Shareholders for their continued support to the Company. In specific, the Board would 

also record its sincere appreciation of the Commitment and Contribution made by all employees of the Company. 

 

41. CAUTIONARY NOTE 
 

The statement forming part of Director’s report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the meaning of 

applicable Securities Law and regulations. Many factors could cause the actual results, performance or achievements of the 

Company to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements that may be expressed or implied 

by such forward looking statements.  
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ANNEXURE -1 

 
 

Statement of Disclosure of Remuneration under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 5(1) of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of the Managerial Personnel ) Rules, 2014 
 

A. Ratio of remuneration to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the FY 2022-2023 as 
well as the percentage increase in remuneration of each director, chief financial officer and company secretary is 

as under:- 

 

Name of the KMP Ratio to Median Remuneration % Change in Remuneration over 

previous Year 

 Whole time Director 

              Mr. Sridharan                      1.19 100% 

 Company Secretary 

              Priyanka Singh                      1.42 -3.6% 

Chief Finnacial Officer 

              Arindam Laha                       0 .57 -7.7% 

 

 

B. Number of Permanent Employees (Including KMP) - 38 
 
C. Explanation on the relationship between average Increase in remuneration and Company Performance 

 
The Compensation and Benefits philosophy of the Company defines that employee remuneration is to be aligned with 

performance of the Company and individual’s contribution in achieving company’s goal for the Year. It does mean that 

Post annual performance process, individual employee’s remuneration is revised, taking into account performance of the 

Company and of the individual employee. At the beginning of the Year, Business goals are decided and cascaded down to 

Various businesses and functions. While effecting revision in remuneration, factors like internal and external parity, 

market competitiveness, company’s overall business strategy are also taken into account.  

 
D. Comparision of the remuneration of the KMP against Performance of the Company   

Aggregate Remuneration of Key Managerial Person KMP in FY 2022-2023 (In rupees )      36,44,000 

Revenue ( in rupees )     10,28,08,101 

Remuneration of KMP (as % of Revenue)         3.54% 

Profit Before Tax ( in rupees )      3,73,05,631 

Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT)        9.77% 

 
E.  Comparision of average Percentage increase in salary of Employees other than Managerial Personnel :- N.A 

 
F.  Comparision of Remuneration of Each of the KMP against performance of the Company 

 

 Mr. Sridharan Mr. Arindam Laha Ms. Priyanka 

Singh 

Whole Time 

Director 

Chief Financial 

officer 

Company 

Secretary 

Remuneration in FY 2022-23 (``) 33,00,000 1,04,000 2,40,000 

Revenue (``) 10,28,08,101  

Remuneration of KMP (as % of 

Revenue) 

3.21 10% 0.23% 

Profit Before Tax (``) 3,73,05,631  

Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT) 8.85% 0.28% 0.64% 



 

 

 

 
 

G. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of employee who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess of the Highest paid director during the Year: 

 

Name Position Total Remuneration % of remuneration in 
excess of highest paid 

Director 

Mr. Sridharan Managing Director 33,00,0.00 N.A. 

Mr. Arindam Laha CFO 1,04,000.00 3.15% 

Ms. Priyanka Singh Company Secretary 2,40,000.00 7.27% 

 
 

Mr. Sridharan is the Highest paid Director at a Remuneration of Rs. 2,75,000/- per Month.  

 

H Affirmation 
 
It is affirmed that remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other Employees is as per the 

Remuneration policy of the Company.  

 

Place:  Howrah 
Date: 24th July 2023                                                                                                       

                                                                                                          BY ORDER OF THE BOARD  

REAL TOUCH FINANCE LIMITED   
 

             
 SD/-             SD/- 

RAJESH KUMAR 

SETHIA 

G. SRIDHARAN 

DIRECTOR                WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 

DIN: 01129789 DIN: 09460423 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

         
 

CHAIRMAN & CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

 

We Sweta Ghorawat, Chairman and Arindam Laha, Chief  Financial Officer of M/s Real Touch Finance Limited , to the 

best of our knowledge and belief, certify that : 

 

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 

2023and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might be misleading. 

 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

iii. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended March 

31,2023 which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct. 

 

iv. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal control system and that we have evaluated the 

effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit 

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal control system, if any, of which we are aware and the steps 

we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

v. We further certify that we have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 

a. There have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting system during the year; 

b. There have been no significant changes in accounting policies during the year except for the changes disclosed in 

    the notes to the financial statements, if any; and 

c. There have been no instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware, involving management or any  

employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

   

 

 

   

                               SD/-                    SD/-         

                                  Chairman                Chief Financial Officer 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 















 

  

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
A) Company’s Philosophy 

 
The Company’s policies, practices and philosophy adopted since inception are in line with Corporate Governance. These 

policies, practices are required periodically to ensure its effective compliance. The Composition of Board of Directors is well 

balanced with a view to manage the affairs of the Company efficiently and professionally.  

 

B) Board of Directors 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent 

Directors who have in depth knowledge of the business. The Board of Director consists of Six Directors. 

 

The corporate governance practices of the Company ensure that the board of directors remains informed, independent and 

involved in the Company and that there are ongoing efforts towards better governance to mitigate risks.  

  

Mr. G. Sridharan 

 
Mr. G. Sridharan, 47 years old is a Science Graduate from Madras University and PGDM (Applied Finance) from IIM, 

Calcutta. Mr. Sridharan has over 20 years of rich experience in the finance industry with the leading institutions like ICICI 

bank, Reliance capital and InCred Financial Service Limited. He has sound knowledge about Retail and SME loan products. 

In his last assignment as Director Sales (SME), he played a significant role in setting up the complete Secured business loan 

vertical for InCred. Later, he was elevated to handle unsecured business loans and Loan against property.  He has managed 

an AUM 880 Cr., and it was one of the most profitable businesses for InCred. He won many accolades in his professional 

carrier, including the Best People Manager award from Reliance Capital. 

 

The Board and shareholders have approved his appointment as Whole Time Director in the Company with effect from 6th 

January 2022. Mr. G. Sridharan is very energetic, experienced and competent personnel to hold the position of Executive 

Director of the Company. He shall not be paid any sitting fees for attending the Board Meeting and Committees thereof. He 

does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial basis any shares in the Company.  

 

Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. G. Sridharan is a Director – NIL 

 

No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR  - NIL 

 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia 
 
Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia is reputed businessman in the field of finance and marketing having a clear business vision and 

practicing hands-off approach. 

 

He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 

 

Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia is a Director – NIL 

 

No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR  - NIL 

 

Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra 
 
Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra has experience of over 12 Years in the field of Accounts and Marketing. His Knowledge will be 

valuable to the company. 

 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 

 

Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra is a Director – NIL 

 

No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR  - NIL 



 

 

 
Smt. Sweta Ghorawat  

 
Smt Sweta Ghorawat has been appointed as Women Non-Executive Director. She has done Diploma in Textile Designing, 

Bachelor of Arts. She has worked as counsellor in Narayan School, Bachpan School etc. Her knowledge will be valuable to 

the company.  

 

He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 

 

Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Smt. Sweta Ghorawat is a Director - NIL 

 

No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR  - NIL 

 

Mr Somnath Sarkar 

 
Mr. Somnath Sarkar is a qualified BSC and has experience of over 15 years in the field of Accounts. His Knowledge will be 

valuable to the Company. 

 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 

 

Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Somnath Sarkar is a Director-NIL 

 

No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR  - NIL 

 

Mr Sundaresan SampathKumar 
 

Mr. Sundaresan SampathKumar is Master in Science and post graduate in Diploma Management. He has over 39 years of 

rich experience in middle and senior Management in Automobile, Retail and Real Estate sector  

 
He does not hold any equity shares in the Company. 

 

Name of other Public Limited Companies in which Mr. Sundaresan SampathKumar is a Director- 1 

 

No of Committee membership including Real Touch as per Regulation 26 of SEBI LODR  - NIL 

 

C) Meetings and Attendance 
The Meeting of the Board is generally held at the registered office of the Company at “Arihant Enclave” 493B/57A G.T. 

Road (South) Shibpur Howrah - 711102. During the financial year under review, Five (5) Board meetings were held on 

28.05.2022, 12.08.2022, 14.11.2022, 30.01.2023, 09.02.2023 and not more than 120 days elapsed between any two 

meetings. 
Particulars of the Directors’ attendance to the Meetings during the financial year ended March 31, 2023, are given below: 

 

Name of the Director No. of Board Meeting held, and attended, during tenure 
 

Attendance 
at the Last 

AGM Held 
on 

28/09/2022 

 28.05.2022 12.08.2022 14.11.2022 30.01.2023 09.02.2023  

Mr. Anant Bhagat Y Y NA NA NA Y 

Sundaresan Sampathkumar NA NA NA Y Y NA 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Mrs Sweta Ghorawat Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Mr.Ujjawal  Kumar Bothra Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Mr G Sridharan Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Mr Somnath Sarkar Y Y Y Y Y Y 

 



 

D) Board Agenda 
The Board meetings are scheduled well in time and Board members are given a notice of Seven days before the meeting date 

except in case of emergent meeting. The Board members are provided with well-structured and comprehensive agenda 

papers. 

 

E)  Independent Directors 
 

Company has received necessary declarations/ disclosures from each of the Independent Director of the Company stating 

that he meets the criteria of independence as required under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to Section 

149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 read along with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) 

Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, and that he has a 

valid certificate of registration for his/her enrollment into the data bank for Independent Directors.  

 

None of the Independent Directors are Promoters or are related to Promoters. They do not have pecuniary relationship with 

the Company and further do not hold two percent or more of the total voting power of the Company. 

 

F) Independent Directors Meetings 
 
During the Year under review, the Independent Director met on 21

st
 November 2022, inter alia to Discuss:- 

• Evaluation of the Performance of the Non Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a Whole; 

• Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive and Non 

Executive Directors 

• Evaluation of the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the Management and the Board 

that is necessary for the board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties effectively. 

 

Familiarisation Programme  
 

The company has an ongoing familiarization programme for all directors with regard to their roles, duties, rights, 

responsibilities in the company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, the business model of the 

company, etc. The details of the familiarisation programme attended by directors are available on the website of the 

company at https://www.realtouchfinance.com/investor-info.html 
 
Competencies of the Board 
 
The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the 

context of Company’s business for effective functioning. It is also confirmed that the directors possess these skills and 
competencies in order to ensure effective functioning of the company. 

 

Core skills / Expertise / Competencies 

Financial Services 

Strategy & Planning 

Corporate Governance 

Technology 

Management & Leadership 

              
The director-wise skills and competencies are laid out in the table below: 
 

Ujjawal Kumar Bothra He has experience of over 12 years in the field of accounts and 
Finance and marketing. His knowledge will be valuable to the 
Company 

Rajesh Kumar Sethia He is a reputed businessman in the field of finance, Accounts  
and marketing having a clear business vision and practicing 
hands-off approach 

Sweta Ghorawat She has done Diploma in Textile Designing, Bachelor of Arts. She has 

worked as counsellor in Narayan School, Bachpan School etc. Her 

knowledge will be valuable to the company.  
 



 

Mr Gopal Sridharan He has done his Bachelors in Science from Madras University 
and PGDM (Applied Finance) from IIM, Calcutta. He has over 20 
years of rich experience in the finance industry with the leading 
institutions like ICICI bank, Reliance capital and InCred 

Financial Services etc. 

Somnath Sarkar Mr. Somnath Sarkar is a qualified BSC and has experience of over 15 

years in the field of Accounts and Finance. His Knowledge will be 

valuable to the Company. 
 

Sundaresan Sampathkumar                                   Master in Science and Post Graduate in Diploma Management. Mr. S. 
Sampathkumar has over 39 years of rich experience in Middle and  Senior 

management in Automobiles, short-term or long-term loan products, 
Retail and Real Estate Sector 

 

Remuneration to Directors 
 

The Company has in place a remuneration policy which is guided by the principles and objectives as enumerated in section 

178 of the Companies Act 2013. 

 
Remuneration to Wholetime Director  
 
The details of remuneration as approved by the Board and shareholders based on the recommendations of the Nomination 

& Remuneration Committee and paid to Mr Gopal Sridharan, Whole-time Director for the financial year ended March 31, 
2023, is as follows: 
 

Particulars Amount (in lakhs) 

Gross Salary 33,00,000 

    Salary as per provisions of Section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 0 

    Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income Tax Act, 1961 0 

    Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 0 

    Commission, Bonus etc 0 

     Stock Options 0 

     Pension 0 

Total 33,00,000 
 
Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors: 
 
Sitting Fees 
 

All directors except the Wholetime Director are paid a sitting fee of INR. 1000/- for attending every meeting of the Board 
and INR NIL/- for attending every meeting of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Independent Directors Meeting. 
 

The details of sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year are as follows: 
 

Name of Director Designation Sitting Fees (INR.) 

Board Committee 

Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Independent Director 6000 NIL 

Rajesh Kumar Sethia Independent Director 6000 NIL 

Sweta Ghorawat Non-Executive Director 6000 NIL 

Somnath Sarkar Independent Director 6000 NIL 

Sundaresan Sampathkumar                                   Non-Executive Director 1000 NIL 

Anant Bhagat* Managing Director  NIL NIL 

Total   
 
*Resigned w.e.f November 12th May 2022 
 



 

Commission to Non-Executive Directors 
 
The Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors of the Company are paid remuneration by way of annual 
commission based on the recommendation by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval by the Board 
within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The details of commission paid to Non-Executive Directors during the financial year ended March 31, 2023, are as follows: 
 
 

Name of Director Designation Commission (INR) 

Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Independent Director NIL 

Rajesh Kumar Sethia Independent Director NIL 

Sweta Ghorawat Non-Executive Director NIL 

Somnath Sarkar Independent Director NIL 

Sundaresan Sampathkumar                                   Non-Executive Director NIL 

Anant Bhagat* Managing Director  NIL 

G. Sridharan Whole Time Director  NIL 

Total NIL 

 
*Resigned w.e.f November 12th May 2022 

 

G) Shareholding of Directors 

 
Names                     No. of Shares held 

      Ujjawal Kumar Bothra                NIL 

      Rajesh Kumar Sethia                  NIL 

      Sweta Ghorawat                    NIL   

      Mr Sridharan                      NIL  

      Somnath Sarkar                     NIL  

              Sundaresan Sampathkumar *                             NIL  

 

            (*Appointed on Board from 14.11.2022) 

 

H)  General Body Meetings 
 

 

Sl No Meeting Type Meeting Date  Resolution passed  Resolution Type 

1 EGM 12
th
 May, 2022 1. Appointment  of Mr. Sridharan as Whole Time 

Director of the Company  

Special 

Resolutions 

2. Regularisation of Appointment of Mr. Somnath 

Sarkar (DIN: 09353167)  appointed as Director 

of the Company 

Special 

Resolutions 

3. Change In Designation Of Mr. Anand Bhagat  

(DIN: 00089156) From Managing Director To 

Non-Executive Director of The Company 

 

Special 

Resolutions 

2 EGM 20
th 

February, 2023 Regularization of Aopointment of Mr. Sundaresan 

Sampathkumar (DIN: 08832266) as Non-Executive 

and Non-Independent Director of the Company 

Special 

Resolutions 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under: 

Financial Year       Date           Location 
2019-2020                       28/09/2020               Video Conferencing  

2020-2021              13/09/2021               Video Conferencing 

2021-2022          28/09/2022       Video Conferencing 

 

 I)  Disclosures 
There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. promoters, directors, relatives, the management, 

subsidiaries etc that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. 

There has been some delay in certain compliances which has been regularized by the Company for which necessary 

payments levied by the BSE has been made. 

 

J) Means of Communication 
The Company regularly interacts with the shareholders through multiple channels of communication such as publication of 

results on quarterly, half yearly basis and yearly basis. The results are not sent individually to Shareholders. 

 

The company has developed its website. All information relating to shareholder and public at large can be viewed by logging 

into the Website. 

 

K) Code of Conduct 
The Company has laid down the code of conduct for its directors. The object of the code is to conduct the company’s 

business ethically and with responsibility, integrity, fairness, transparency and honesty. 

 

All Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the Company’s code of conduct for 

the financial year 2022-23. A declaration to this effect has been enclosed with this report as Annex …... 

 

L) Registrar and Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System 
M/s Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd is your Company’s Share Transfer Agent. Share transfer in physical form and other 

communications regarding shares, Change of Address etc may be addressed to 

M/s Niche Technologies Pvt Ltd 

3A Auckland Place,  

7
th
 Floor, Room No. 7A and 7B, 

Kolkata - 700017 

Phone: 033-22806616 

E mail Id: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 

Trading in Equity shares of the Company is permitted as demat as well as physical form. Shares sent for transfer in physical 

form are registered and returned with in a period of 30 Days from the date of receipt of the documents, provided the 

documents are valid and complete in all respects. With a view to expediting the process of share transfers Ms. Priyanka 

Singh, Company Secretary of the Company, severally authorized to approve transfer of equity shares and the same shall be 

ratified in the next meeting of shareholders/ Investors Grievance Committee. The shareholders/ Investors Grievance 

Committee meets as and when required to consider the other transfer, transmission of shares etc and to attend shareholder 

Grievance. 

M) Distribution of Shareholding 
The Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2023 was as follows: 

 

Sl 

No. 
  

No. of Equity Shares 

held  

No. of Share 

Holders 

% of total

 Shareholders 

No. of Shares 

held  

% of total 

Shares 

1. 1  - 500 1233 87.1378 1,61,003 1.2685 

2. 501 - 1,000 72 5.0883 56,382 0.4442 

3. 1,001 - 5,000 47 3.3216 1,10,934 0.8740 

4. 5,001 - 10,000 11 0.7774 77,654 0.6118 

5. 10,001 - 50,000 25 1.7668 6,99,840 5.5137 

6. 50,001 - 1,00,000 7 0.4947 5,23,670 4.1258 

7. 1,00,001- and above 20 1.4134 1,10,63,207 87.1620 

 Total 1415 100.00       1,26,92,690     100.00  



 

 
N) Details of Shareholding as on March 31, 2023 was as under:- 
 

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN  
 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of shares held at the beginning of the 

Year 

No. of shares held at the end of the Year % change 

during the 
year 

 Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares 

  

A. Promoters           

(1) Indian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Central or State 

Govt 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Bodies 

Corporates 

6869620 0 6869620 54.123 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 0 0 

d) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

e) Any Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SUB TOTAL (A) (1) 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 0 0 

           

(2) Foreign           

a) NRI Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Bodies. Corp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

           

Total Shareholding 

of Promoter 

(A)=(A)(1)+ (A)(2) 

6869620 0 6869620 54.123 6869620 0 6869620 54.123 0 0 

           

B Public 

Shareholding 

          

(1) Institutions           

a)   Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b)   Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

a) Central or Sate 

Govt 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

b) Venture Capital 

Fund 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

c) Insurance Co. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

d) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SUB TOTAL (B)(1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

           

(2) Non Institutions           

a) Bodies Corporate 4283153 407450 4690603 36.955 4274998 407450 4682448 36.891 -8155 -0.064 

b) Individual    

Shareholders 

          

Having  nominal 

Capital Upto One 

Lakhs 

169761 167500 337261 2.657 188987 167500 356487 2.809 1922

6 

0.152 

Having Nominal 

Capital more than 

One Lakhs 

790884 0 790884 6.231 780520 0 780520 6.149 -10364 -0.082 

c) Any other 

Clearing Member 

4322 0 4322 0.034 3615 0 3615 0.028 -707 -0.006 

SUBTOTAL (B)(2) 5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 0 0.00 

Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 

5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 5248120 574950 5823070 45.877 0 0.00 

SHARES HELD BY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.00 



 

CUSTODIAN (C ) 

TOTAL 

(A)+(B)+(C) 
1211774

0 

574950 1269269

0 

100 12117740 574950 1269269

0 

100 0 0 

 

O) Listing with Stock Exchange 
 

The Equity shares of the Company are currently listed for trading under Group XT of the BSE Limited. Company confirms 

that it has paid listing Fees to BSE for the Year 2022-2023. 

 

 Market Price data 
 

Sr. No.                                 Month 

 

                                       Price 

                High                  Low 

1. April 2022 29.15 21.95 

2. May 2022 29.55 21.70 

3. June 2022 22.05 14.70 

4. July 2022 16.70 12.10 

5. August 2022 16.35 13.54 

6. September 2022 22.10 14.25 

7. October 2022 20.30 16.25 

8. November 2022 32.10 15.00 

9. December 2022 51.35 28.10 

10. January 2023 37.05 28.55 

11. February 2023 46.95 33.30 

12. March 2023 40.34 35.12 

 

P) General Shareholder Information 
 

Annual General Meeting: 

 
Date                   27.09.2023 

Time                   3.00 P.M. 

Venue                    Arihant Enclave, 493B/57A G T Road (South) Shibpur Howrah-711102(VC) 

Financial Year              2022-2023 

Book Closure Date            21-09-2023 TO 27-09-2023 

Listing on Stock Exchange     BSE LTD        Scrip Code:-538611 

ISIN No.                INE840I01014 

 

The Company has paid listing fees to the Exchange. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

Q) Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle blower Policy 
In accordance with the requirements of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing 

Regulations, 2015, the Company has formulated a “vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy” which provides an avenue to 

the Directors and employees of the Company to directly report, their genuine concerns including unethical behavior and 

violation of code of conduct, to the chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

No person has been denied access to the chairman of the Audit committee of the Board of Directors of the Company.      

 
R) Shareholder’/Investors’ Grievance Committee 
The shareholder’/Investors’ Grievance Committee of the Board has been constituted to look into complaints like transfer of 

shares, Non-receipt of Dividend etc. The committee is headed by Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia, as Chairman, Mr. Sridharan, 

Whole-time Director and Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra Non Executive Independent Director. No compliant had been received 

during the year.  

 

 

 

 



 

S) Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee assists the Board in its responsibility for overseeing the quality and integrity of accounting, auditing 

and reporting practice of the company and its compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. The Committee’s purpose 

is to oversee the accounting and financial reporting process of the company, the audit of the Company’s Financial 

Statements, the appointments of Auditor, Independent Performance and remuneration of the Statutory Auditors. 

 

During the year under review, four meetings of the committee were held during the year ended: 

 

28/05/2022, 12/08/2022, 14/11/2022, 30/01/2023  

 

The composition of the committee and attendance at its meeting is given below: 

  

Name of Director Category No. of Meetings Held 
No. of Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia Non Executive Independent Director 
4 

4 

Mr.  Ujjawal Kumar 

Bothra 

Non Executive Independent Director 
4 

4 

Mr Sridharan Whole Time Director 4 4 

   

T) Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 The Committee shall identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors of the Company/ who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the Criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and 

also shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance. Committee shall also formulate the criteria for determining 

qualifications, positive attributes, independent of the Directors and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the 

remuneration, Key Managerial personnel and other employees.  

 

No. of Meeting 

 
During the year the Committee had Two Meeting i.e. on 28/05/2022, 14/11/2022 

 

Name, Composition and attendance during the Year 
 

Name of the Director   No. of Meetings Held No. of Meeting Attended 
    

1.Mr. Rajesh Kumar Sethia  2 2 

2. Mr. Ujjawal Kumar Bothra                           

3. Somnath Sarkar 

 2 

2 

                                                                          

2 

2 

 

Related Party Transactions disclosures 
 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and in ordinary 

course of business. There were no materially significant transactions made by the company with promoters, directors, key 

managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company. 

There were no contracts or arrangements entered into with related parties during the year to be disclosed under sections 

188(1) and 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act in form AOC 2. 

 

The company has in place a policy on related party transactions as approved by the board and the same is available on the 

website of the company at https://www.realtouchfinance.com/investor-info.html 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Disclosure under POSH Act, 2013 
 
Your Company has not received any complaints under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and there are no complaints pending as 
on the end of the financial year. 

 
Penalties 
 
There were no penalties, strictures imposed on the company by stock exchange(s) or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any 

matter related to capital markets, during the last three years. 
 
Fees paid to Statutory Auditors 
 
The total fees paid by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2023, to the Statutory Auditors including all 
entities in their network firm / entity of which they are a part is given below: 
 

Particulars Amount in lakhs 

Fees for audit and related services paid to statutory auditors and 
affiliates firms and to entities of the network of which the statutory 
auditor is a part 

100000 

Other fees paid to statutory auditors & affiliates firms and to entities of 
the network of which the statutory auditor is a part 

NIL 

Total Fees 100000 

 
Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance 
 

The certificate on compliance of corporate governance norms from Statutory Auditor is enclosed to this report as Annex 2 
 
Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice 
 

Shruti Agarwal, Practcing Company Secretary has issued a certificate as required under the Listing Regulations, confirming 
that none of the directors on the board of the company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as director of companies by SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. A certificate to 
this effect has been enclosed to this report as Annex 3 
 
CEO/CFO Certification 
 
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have submitted a compliance certificate to the board regarding the 
financial statements and internal control systems as required under regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) 2015. 

 

U) SEBI Complaints Redressal Systems (SCORES) 
 

SEBI has initiated SCORES for processing the investor complaints in a centralized web based redress system and online 

redressal of all the shareholders complaints. The Company is in compliance with the Scores and redressed the shareholders 

complaints well within the stipulated time. 

 

W) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:- 

 
As stipulated by SEBI, a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is conducted on quarterly basis to reconcile the total admitted 

capital with National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited and the total issued and 

paid up Capital. The audit is carried out every quarter and the report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchange and is 

placed before the Board of Directors of the Company. 

 

X) Corporate Identity Number 

 
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company, allotted by the Ministry of Corporate affairs, Government of India is 

L01111WB1997PLC085164 

 



 

 

Y) Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance 
 
As part of the Green Initiative process, the Company has taken an initiative of Sending Documents like Notice calling of 

Annual General Meeting, Corporate Governance report, Directors Report, audited financial Statements, Auditor’s Report etc. 

Physical Copies are sent only to those shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the Company. 

Shareholders are requested to register their email id with the registrar and share transfer Agent/Concerned Depository to 

enable the Company to send the Documents in electronic form or inform the Company in case they wish to receive the above 

documents in paper mode.  

       

Place:  Howrah 
                                                                                                                BY ORDER OF THE BOARD      
Date: 24th July, 2023                                                                                                             

 

 SD/-             SD/-            

 
RAJESH KUMAR 
SETHIA  

G. SRIDHARAN 

DIRECTOR                WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 

DIN: 01129789 DIN: 09460423 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

    



 

 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

The Companies’ main object is Non-Banking Finance activities. The market for this activity offers high potential for 

growth. The Company is giving Loan and Inter Corporate Deposit to the corporate client and is operating from Kolkata 

and Tamilnadu. Considering the growth prospective the Company has opened various branch offices in the state of Tamil 

Nadu, viz., Chennai, Kancheepuram, Thiruvallur, Villupuram, Areni & Vandavasi.  There have been a number of causes 

behind growth of Indian Economy in last couple of years.  

 

Business Environment 

 

1. Global Economic Overview 
 
Global prospects remain extremely unclear one year into pandemic. New virus mutations and therefore the accumulating 

human toll raise worries, while increasing vaccine coverage lifts sentiment. The outlook depends not simply on the 

outcome of the impact of virus and the effectiveness of vaccines, it additionally centers on how effectively economic 

policies are deployed under such uncertain times. 

 

2. Indian Economic Overview 
 
 India’s real GDP growth for FY 2022-23 was 7.2%, which is amongst the highest in leading economies, as the Indian 

economy bounced back during the year exhibiting resilience during the pandemic. As the year progressed, most of the 

economic indicators such as GST collection, IIP, Exports and UPI transactions saw an uptick, indicating a steady 

recovery from the lows of the first quarter of FY 2022-23.  

 

While India's growth outlook for the year ahead remains bright, driven by private consumption and elevated public 

spending, but risks remain, the biggest of which is inflation. Higher inflation can curtail the discretionary consumption 

and unfavorably affect the recovering domestic demand. The ongoing geopolitical crisis has caused supply chain 

disruptions which have led to higher commodity prices; if this gets prolonged, it can further fuel the inflation. As Rupee 

depreciates and import prices go up, taming inflation can become an uphill task for the central bank. A slower than 

expected global growth recovery may affect the demand for exports. 

 

 India’s retail inflation soared to an 18-month high of 4.25 % driven by inflationary pressures. While RBI’s stance 

remains accommodative in order to support growth, ensuring that inflation remains within the target going forward shall 

be a key for a sustainable growth environment. However, a downside to this is any further increase in the rates may force 

Banks and NBFCs to further increase their lending rates, and thus affecting consumption and capital expenditure. 

 

 Nevertheless, the opportunities for growth remain intact driven by strong economic fundamentals, favorable economic 

policies (such as PLI scheme, Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan and Startup India initiative), digital push, demographic 

dividend and growing global preference for India as an investment destination. Further, as the Company enters into FY 

2023-24, the thrust on capital expenditure in Union Budget 2023 is a welcome move and expected to push demand 

through multiplier effect on the economy.  

 

Given the proactive efforts by the regulator and the push from the government to support growth, the Company expects 

the inflationary environment to soften and a large vaccinated population is likely to contain the impact of subsequent 

COVID-19 waves, which will give way to robust growth going forward. This in turn shall spur credit demand across 

retail, SME and corporate segments, and reflect in the performance of the financial services sector as a whole. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Financial Performance –FY 2022-23 

 

S. No. Particulars 2022-2023(Rs. ‘00’) 2021-2022(`Rs. '00') 

1. Gross Income 10,28,081.01 2,41,201.51 

2. Profit Before Interest and Depreciation and  

Provisions and Contingencies 

8,58,537.78 1,94,975.64 

3. Finance Cost 4,40,576.30 NIL 

4. Depreciation and Amortisation 6,341.46 136.49 

5 Provisions and Contingencies 

 

38,563.71 160.00 

6 Profit Before Tax 3,73,056.31 1,94,679.15 

7 Tax Expense 1,11,096.15 49,500.00 

8 Profit After tax 2,61,960.16 1,45,179.15 

9 Other Comprehensive Income  
Items that will not  be reclassified subsequently to 

profit or loss 

11583.73 6,182.90 

10. Transfer to Statutory Reserve as per RBI 

Guidelines 

27,00,000.00 24,00,000.00 

11. Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares NIL NIL 

12. Balance Brought forward from Balance Sheet 8,70,375.10 7,50,013.50 

13. Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet 10,89,209.99 8,70,375.10 

 

 

Other Functions – A Brief Overview 
 

3. Risk management 
 
The Company has built a robust risk management framework with strong risk fundamentals and continues to monitor the 

internal and external risks arising out of macro-economic factors, regulatory changes and geo-political scenario. The 

Board of Directors has set the tone at the top by laying down and approving the strategic plans and objectives for Risk 

Management and Risk Philosophy.  

 

A comprehensive Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM”) Framework has been adopted by the Company which uses 

defined Key Risk Indicators based on quantitative and qualitative factors. A two-dimensional quantitative data 

management tool - Heat Map – has been implemented, which enables the Management to have a comprehensive view of 

various identified risk areas based on their probability and impact.  

 

Changes in internal and external operating environment, digitalization, technological advancements and agile way of 

working have increased the significance of Fraud, Information & Cyber Security and Operational Risks. The Company 

continues to focus on increasing operational resilience and mitigation of these risks. 

 
4. Compliance 

 
The Company is registered with RBI as a NBFC-ND-SI. The Company has complied with and continues to comply with 

all applicable laws, rules, circulars and regulations, including the Master Direction – Non-Banking Financial Company 

(Reserve Bank)Directions, 2016 (“RBI Master Directions”), as amended from time to time. With respect to provisioning 

of NPAs, the Company follows stricter norms than those prescribed by RBI.  

 
5. Internal Audit 

 
The Management has laid down set of standards; processes and structure which enables to implement internal financial 

controls across the organization with reference to financial statements and that such controls are adequate and are 

operating effectively. Internal Finance control framework has been established in line with the Internal Control - 

Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 

(“COSO”) and Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (the ‘Guidance Note’). 



 

 

 

During FY 2022-23, testing was conducted basis process walkthrough and review of samples as per documented controls 

in the Risk & Control matrix. Testing is done for each of the controls with the help of an independent firm, on behalf of 

Management confirming the existence and operating effectiveness of controls over financial reporting. Review was 

performed on design, adequacy and operating effectiveness of the controls. During the year under review, no material or 

serious observation has been observed for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

 
6. Human Resources 
The group’s people mission to nurture and empower employees who demonstrate both honesty and high performance in a 

fair and transparent environment. 

 

1. Cautionary Statement 
Statement made in this MD&A describing the group’s objectives, projection’s, estimates, general market trends, 

expectations etc., may constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the ambit of applicable laws and regulations. These 

‘forward looking statements’ involve a number of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results 

differ materially from those suggested by the ‘forward looking statement’. 

 

                                                    

Place:  Howrah 
                                                                                                         BY ORDER  OF THE BOARD      
Date:- 24.07.2023                                                                                                            

 
 SD/-            SD/-            

 
RAJESH KUMAR 

SETHIA 

G. SRIDHARAN 

DIRECTOR                WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR 
DIN: 01129789 DIN: 09460423 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 


















































































